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SUGGESTED SHORT TRAIL ROUTES

Discover the stories of Singapore's Civic District through these thematic self-guided routes, from tales of the ancient Malay kingdom and early settlers, to our journey to nationhood. You may
also create your own route using these featured heritage sites!
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The Civic District Heritage Trail is part of the National Heritage Board's
ongoing efforts to document and present the history and social memories of
places in Singapore. We hope this trail will bring back fond memories for
those who have worked, lived or played in the area, and serve as a useful
source of information for visitors and new residents.

Supported by

@ Neritage mce”

Board Ministry of Culture, Community and Youth

View of part of Empress Place with'clock tower of Victoria Memorial Hall visible, 1980s
Courtesy of National Archives of Singapore

Journey to Nationhood
0.5 hour on foot, 550 m

Trace the key milestones of Singapore’s journey to nationhood that

occurred at the Civic District. From post-World War |l to
independence, Singapore underwent civil service reforms, achieved
full internal self-governance in 1959, merger with Malaysia in 1963,
and finally independence in 1965. Discover key events in Singapore's
path to independence through this route.

»

Start at the (1) Former City Hall, now
part of the National Gallery Singapore. This
was where Singapore's first fully elected
government was sworn into office in 1959.
On its steps, Prime Minister Lee Kuan Yew
declared Singapore's achievement of full
internal self-governance in 1959 and merger
with Malaysia in 1963. The building also =
housed Mr Lee’s office until 1971. - " o

Look across to the (2) Padang located
opposite. It is one of Singapore's first planned
public open spaces for recreation. Crowds
had also gathered here to witness historic
milestones in our nationhood journey: the
swearing-in of our first fully elected cabinet and
Head of State, Yusof Ishak, in 1959; and the first
National Day Parade as a republic in 1966.

Cross the road to the (3) Former Parliament
House, now The Arts House. This was where
Singapore's Legislative Assembly and later,
Parliament, held their sittings until 1999. Key
debates and rousing arguments for Singapore's
self-governance and merger with Malaya took
place in the building’'s chamber.

Walk down to the (4) Victoria Theatre and
Victoria Concert Hall. Beyond its long history
as an entertainment venue, key events leading
to Singapore's independence, such as public
meetings of the Rendel Commission and the
People's Action Party's inaugural meeting, took
place here. Head to the heritage gallery located on
Level 3 to find out more about the site.

From the entrance of Victoria Theatre and Victoria
Concert Hall, walk towards the waterfront to visit
the (5) Esplanade Park. Look out for National
Monuments such as the Cenotaph and Lim Bo
Seng Memorial, which serve as a reminder of the
fall of Singapore in 1942 during World War II.
Driven by disappointment with British colonial rule
that led to the fall, Singapore commenced its
independence movement shortly after the war.

For the last stop of this thematic route, follow the
path towards Anderson Bridge and take the
underpass to arrive at the (6) Former Empress
Place Building, now the Asian Civilisations
Museum. This building was once the “control room”
of civil administration in the 1950s where important
government offices were located. The open space in
front of the building, known as Empress Place, was
where the first Chief Minister of Singapore David
Marshall delivered passionate speeches advocating
for Singapore's independence after World War II.

Functions of the Civic District
1.5 hours on foot, 2.2 km

Explore Singapore's Civic District, an area that has housed key
government functions and cultural institutions. From its beginnings as a
bustling 14th century port and administrative hub under British colonial
rule, to its role today as a vibrant civic district, this area has been central

to Singapore's development. Learn some of the key civic institutions, sites
and their functions through this route.

Begin at the (1) Former Fullerton Building, now the
Fullerton Hotel. Completed in 1928, it housed the General
Post Office, one of the most important post offices in the
East, connecting Singapore to the rest of the world. The
building was also home to several colonial government
departments including that for Marine, Imports and
Exports, Finance and Education. Head to the heritage
gallery located within Fullerton Hotel to find out more.

Cross Anderson Bridge and walk towards the
Victoria Theatre and Victoria Concert Hall. Look out
for the bronze (2) Statue of Sir Stamford Raffles,
commissioned in 1887 to commemorate his founding
of Singapore as a British trading port. Raffles had
designated this entire area as the civic centre to
serve as the administrative heart of the colony in
Singapore's first town plan in 1822,

Walk along Parliament Place and look across the road
to spot the domed building, the (3) Former Supreme
Court, now part of the National Gallery Singapore.
This building housed the nation’s highest court from
1939 till 2005.

Continue walking down the path and you will see the
(4) Former Parliament House, now The Arts House.
On your left, which is the oldest surviving civic
building in Singapore. The current Parliament House
is located within the compound just beside The
Arts House and features a visitor gallery open to
members of the public keen to find out more about
the Parliament.

Proceed down High Street and cross Hill Street to the
(5) Former Hill Street Police Station. The biggest
government building in its time when it was erected
in 1934, it now houses the Ministry of Culture,
Community & Youth and the Ministry of Digital
Development and Information. Turn around and
walk down Hill Street to reach the (6) Central
Fire Station. Completed in 1909, this is Singapore's
oldest surviving fire station.

Next, take the gentle slope up Canning Rise to
the (7) Fort Canning Park. Once known as Bukit
Larangan ("Forbidden Hill" in Malay), the hill used to
be the seat of governance. The early Malays believed
this was the abode of 14th century Malay kings. When
the British arrived, they built their first Government
House, as well as other military structures here. Look
out for the stately Fort Canning Centre, originally
British military barracks built in 1926.

Finally, visit the (8) National Museum of Singapore,
Singapore's oldest museum and a National
Monument. Originally built in 1887 as the Raffles
Library and Museum. The museum and library were
separated in 1960, and the former acquired its current
name in 2006. Today, the museum is a gateway to
the stories of Singapore and its people.

Seeking Fortunes, Forging New Lives
1 hour on foot, 1km

Explore how immigrants who arrived from around the world in
Singapore after its founding in 1819 built new lives. Their legacies can
be found in the Civic District, from places of worship and businesses
to schools and associations. Learn which communities settled down
here in the early days via this route.

Start at the (1) St Andrew's Cathedral, Singapore's
oldest surviving Anglican place of worship. Completed
in 1865, it was named after Scotland’s patron saint to
honour its early Scottish benefactors. As the seat of
the Anglican bishop, it continues to serve as the heart
of the Anglican community.
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Cross the road to Capitol Singapore, a hotel and
shopping complex. The complex, comprising the (2)
Capitol Theatre, Former Namazie Mansions and
Former Stamford House, has been a retail and
entertainment centre in the Civic District since the
19th century. Built in 1930 by M. M. A. Namazie, a
businessman of Persian origin, former Capitol Theatre
and Namazie Mansions were later sold to the Shaw
Organisation. Capitol Theatre, once Shaw's flagship
cinema, continues to be a theatre today.

Walk to the former Stamford House, now Kempinski
Hotel. Built in 1904 by Armenian businessman
\ 4 Seth Paul, it housed the European goods store
Whiteaway, Laidlaw and Co.. The building was last sold
to the Lalwani family from Sindh (in modern-day
Pakistan) in 1963, who ran the popular Bobby-O
Department Store until the 1980s, when the
V) ° government acquired the building for redevelopment.
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Walk down Hill Street where you will find the (3)
Masjid Al-Burhani, established in 1897 by the Dawoodi
Bohras, a Muslim sect from Gujarat, India. These were
notable traders who arrived in Singapore in the late
1800s. The current building was rebuilt in 2000. Please
note that this site is not open to the public.
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Next to the mosque stands the (3) Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, founded in 1906
to represent the interests of the Chinese business
community. Visit the building's public gallery to find out
more about the chamber’s history.

Cross the street to the (4) Armenian Church of St Gregory
the llluminator, which is the first Christian church in Singapore.
Consecrated in 1836, the church served the small but influential
Armenian community, known for its successful merchants and traders.
The churchyard contains the tombstones of eminent Armenians such
as Agnes Joaquim, who bred Singapore's national flower, the Vanda
Miss Joaquim.

Cross Coleman Street to the (5) Masonic Hall, built in 1897 to serve
the Freemasons, a fraternal society. Beside this building in the same
area, you can also see the legacy of Methodists in Singapore, who
arrived from England in the late 1800s. Other than Wesley Methodist
Church at Fort Canning Road, the Methodists also established the (5)
Former Anglo-Chinese School in 1886 to educate Chinese boys. The
! former school’s buildings now house the Children’s Museum Singapore
- and the National Archives of Singapore. At nearby Stamford Road, the
. former Methodist Publishing House (known locally as “MPH Building”)
was built in 1908.

Next, cross the road to (6) Armenian Street to see the former Tao Nan
School, now the Peranakan Museum. Founded in 1906 by Hokkien
merchants, the school provided secular education for Hokkien children,
and later students of other dialect groups. The school was relocated in
1982 to Marine Parade. Finally, visit the Peranakan Museum'’s galleries
or view the trail marker near MPH Building on Armenian Street.
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